MINUTES SUBJECT TO CORRECTION. CHANGES, IF ANY, WILL BE RECORDED IN THE MINUTES OF THE NEXT MEETING OF
THE COMMITTEE.

TOWN OF WILLISTON
ENERGY COMMITTEE
MEETING MINUTES
July 24, 2024
Meeting Recording: https://voutu.be/47NpkkuV5I8

*Meeting held in person at the Town Hall Annex and by teleconference (Zoom).

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chair Reed Parker, Vice Chair Kevin Thorley, Matt Wood, Kevin
Batson, Michael Lazorchak, and Maria Gingras.

ADMINISTRATION: Melinda Scott, Energy and Community Development Planner
ABSENT: Eric Hillmuth
OTHERS PRESENT: Marcy Kass

1. Call to Order

Vice Chair Reed Parker called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Chair Kevin Thorley
took over when he arrived at a little past 6:30.

2. Public Comment

There was no public comment.

3. Approve Draft July 10, 2024 Meeting Minutes

The Committee reviewed the draft July 10, 2024 meeting minutes. Matt Wood made a
motion to approve the minutes as presented. Kevin Batson seconded the motion. The
motion was carried with a 5-0 vote.

4. Clean Heat Standard — Next Steps
Melinda stated she thought it would be helpful for the Committee to discuss first process
and then policy questions. Maria asked for a clarification of Ordinance versus Standard.
Melinda stated an Ordinance would define what it applies to, but generally once an
Ordinance takes effect it applies to everyone and there is no vesting. There was some
discussion about enforcement. Melinda stated that because the town does not have a
building code nor a building inspector, it would most likely rely on a self-certification
process.

Kevin Thorley provided an overview of the discussion about a Clean Heat Standard held
during the July 16 Selectboard meeting. Kevin stated there were a number of people in
attendance who supported a Clean Heat Standard, including Andrew Chalnick (South
Burlington City Councilor), Jack Hanson (former Burlington City Councilor).

Michael Lazorchak asked how this would differ from the Affordable Heat Act happening
on the state level. Kevin explained that if the town were to adopt an Ordinance, it would
prohibit fossil fuel heating sources in new construction. Kevin explained there is a waiver
provision in the Burlington and South Burlington Ordinances but the developer has to
document that the cost of a carbon-free heating system would be more expensive over 20


https://youtu.be/47NpkkuV5l8

WILLISTON ENERGY COMMITTEE — July 24, 2024 PAGE 2

years than the cost of a fossil fuel system. Only one time has a waiver provision been
granted, and Melinda stated it was for a Habitat for Humanity home. Kevin stated that
both Ordinances incorporate a cost of carbon emissions, which is taken into account in
cost analysis.

Kevin Thorley stated that after discussion, the Selectboard decided it wants the Energy
Committee to move forward on researching a Clean Heat Ordinance and bringing
recommendations to the Selectboard.

Reed Parker stated he thought the speakers were effective in presenting information and
provided valuable perspectives.

Maria Gingras asked if any towns have provisions requiring that retrofits comply with the
Clean Heat Ordinance, and Melinda stated that Burlington’s ordinance applies to both
new and existing buildings, whereas South Burlington’s applies to only new construction.
Maria thinks that there are more existing buildings and there will be for a long time, so it
might make sense for the Ordinance to apply to existing buildings.

Michael stated that it is very expensive to retrofit existing buildings with heat pumps.
Maria stated for some homes it could be relatively simple to switch out. Michael stated
that there is already a structure that incentivizes electrification, and if the rebates are set
at the appropriate amount, that should be the reason people switch over.

Melinda stated that the Burlington Ordinance requires existing large buildings to comply
with the Ordinance. The threshold for “large” is very high, perhaps as much as 40,000sf.
Melinda stated that all city buildings need to comply regardless of size.

The Burlington Ordinance does not apply to existing residential buildings. Melinda stated
that much of the housing stock lacks adequate electrical service to support heat pumps.

Kevin Batson reminded the group that the original request pertained to new “large”
housing builds, not to individual homes. Maria stated that the Committee should define
the scope in such a way that it can have a large impact while not being too onerous for
homeowners.

Melinda suggested the group focus on establishing a process before digging into policy
questions.

Michael asked the group how this idea came about. Marcy Kass spoke up, stating that the
petitioners desired the Ordinance to be implemented before the new Town Plan was
adopted. The idea is to target new large-scale builds because the best time to install heat
pumps is at initial construction, retrofitting is a lot more expensive. The petitioners
wanted to get this done sooner than the Town Plan adoption because there are a lot of
new homes that have gone through permitting and will be built soon.

Kevin Thorley stated that any new building not having a heat pump puts the burden on
the future homebuilder to switch over to a heat pump. A Clean Heat Ordinance removes
the default of natural gas and puts the burden on the developers, not the future



WILLISTON ENERGY COMMITTEE — July 24, 2024 PAGE 3

homeowners. Maria asked if we should be reaching out to developers to let them know
this is coming. Melinda stated yes, it is important to bring developers in and that is
getting at the process decisions that should be discussed.

Marcy Kass stated that the Selectboard thinks this should be a high priority. Reed Parker
responded that there is still a process to go through.

Maria asked if we know what is scheduled to get built and when. Melinda stated that
there are several proposed developments with most of their permits in place, who are not
building anything because interest rates are very high and costs are high. Maria would
like a list of developments and an estimate of when they will be built, so that the
Committee can develop a timeline that has an Ordinance in place before building
happens. Melinda stated that it will be hard to determine when building will happen, it is
constantly shifting.

Reed stated that the Committee needs public input, similar to the Williston 2050 and
Form Based Code processes.

Kevin Thorley suggested inviting someone from South Burlington and Burlington to
come in and talk about their process and how they engaged the public. Michael asked
what public outreach has been done in Williston thus far, and Melinda stated very little so
far. Maria stated that the outreach should be targeted to developers and business owners.

Michael stated that the public should be engaged because this is a quality-of-life issue,
what do the people here want.

Kevin Batson stated that this is in the current Energy Plan as a goal, and the Committee
represents the town. Melinda stated that this is one town goal, and there are multiple town
goals, some of which conflict with each other. The Housing Committee is a stakeholder
and should be involved. Melinda recommended the Energy and Housing Committees
meet jointly to discuss the concerns. Melinda stated affordable housing developers are
another stakeholder that should be engaged.

Maria stated she has been writing notes on the process. She stated the Committee
members should familiarize themselves with the Burlington and South Burlington
Ordinances, then bring in people from those towns to hear about their process, then draft
a rough timeline/plan for Williston’s process, then talk to the Housing Committee and
other stakeholders. After that, develop a very rough draft of an Ordinance using the
Burlington and South Burlington ordinances as a template.

Michael reminded the group that there is a structure in place (Affordable Heat Act and
Renewable Energy Standard) heading to the desired outcome. It’s important to decide
what is it that we are trying to achieve and how can we move forward. Michael suggested
engaging VGS, GMP, Efficiency Vermont, and that the Committee should learn more
about the Affordable Heat Act/Clean Heat Standard and where it stands.

Melinda asked the group who should be invited to meetings and who should be
approached one-on-one. Kevin Thorley stated invite someone from Burlington and South



WILLISTON ENERGY COMMITTEE — July 24, 2024 PAGE 4

Burlington, and Efficiency Vermont. As for the Affordable Heat Act, Committee
members could do that research on their own. Maria stated Efficiency Vermont is likely
following this and can provide a summary. VECAN and EAN were another sources
mentioned.

Kevin Thorley summarized the information needed:

¢ Find out how other towns have approached this
¢ Find out the status of the Affordable Heat Act

Kevin Thorley will reach out to Jack Hanson to find out other towns that are looking into
this. Kevin and Melinda can work together on inviting guests to the next meeting of the
Energy Committee. Melinda stated that VGS is interested in being engaged in this effort
so they should also be invited in. Reed Parker mentioned Kristin Kelly from GMP is also
very interested in engaging with the Committee.

Reed asked if there is value in writing an article for the Observer discussing what the
Selectboard decided and the steps the Energy Committee is taking. Kevin Thorley asked
how far along in planning should the Committee be before soliciting input, and Reed
responded right from the start. The Committee discussed different ways of getting input —
through a survey, Front Porch Forum, etc. Michael suggested writing an article to provide
information on what the Committee is doing, not necessarily asking for specific input.

S. Timeline for finishing draft Energy Plan and Town Plan Energy chapter
Melinda stated she expects to receive data from CCRPC in August and hopes that the
Plan can be finished by early September and transmitted to the Planning Commission.

6. FY25 Workplan (as time permits)
Melinda screen shared the workplan chart. Kevin Thorley stated the EV Fair should be
coded as “ongoing” and that the Committee should decide on a date for this year’s
Energy Fair and start reaching out to partners. Kevin stated that the Energy Fair could be
an opportunity to gather feedback on the Clean Heat Ordinance.

Kevin suggested that the Committee do the Mentimeter exercise again similar to last year
— the Effort to Impact scatterplot and compare that to last year’s results. Melinda can
prepare that for the next meeting.

7. FY24 Annual Report (as time permits)
Melinda stated she has not started drafting the Annual Report. Maria volunteered to draft
the report, and asked Melinda to send her last year’s.

8. Other Business
e Fall Energy Fair — there was discussion about changing the location from ABS to
WCS or the Town Hall parking lot. Melinda mentioned that there are two
weekends during National Drive Electric Week, September 28 and October 5.
Melinda will send out a Doodle Poll to determine a good date.
e Williston Observer Living Green articles — write about the new town electric
mowers and robot, and/or the new CVSD electric school buses




WILLISTON ENERGY COMMITTEE — July 24, 2024 PAGE 5

e Reed provided an update for Window Dressers activities. Melinda suggested
setting up information at the Energy Fair.

9. Adjournment

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m.



